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5670 Wilshire Boulevard, 1llth Floor b[ pEPUTY
Los Angeles, California 90036-3648 4/“” i

Phone: (323) 965-3998
Fax: {323) 965-3908

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

7
o (3F2)
oV 3os M

Plaintiff, COMPLAINT FOR INSIDER TRADING
IN VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL
vs. SECURITIES LAWS

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

ANDREW JAY NEWMARK,

Defendant.

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission {(“"Commission”)

alleges:

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. This Court has Jjurisdiction over this action pursuant to
Sections 21i(d), 21(e), Z21A(a) (1)} and 27 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) [15 U.S5.C. §§ 738u{d), 78ul(e),
78u-1{(a) (1) and 78aa]l.

2. Defendant Andrew Jay Newmark {“Newmark” or “Defendant”},
directly or indirectly, made use of the means or instrumentalities
of interstate commerce, of the mails, and/or the facilities of a

national securities exchange, in connection with the transactions,

E——
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acts, practices éhd courses of business alleged in this Complaint.
3. This Court i1s an appropriate venue for this action
pursuant to Section 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.5.C. § 78aa].
Certain of the transactions, acts, practices and courses of business
constituting violations of the laws alleged herein occurred within

the Scuthern District of California.

SUMMARY
4. This matter involves insider trading in the securities of
DH Technology, Inc. (“DH Technology”) by Defendant Andrew Jay
Newmark. After Axiohm, S.A. (“Axiohm”)} had taken a substantial
step or steps to commence a tender cfifer for DH Technology, Newmark
acquired material information about the Axiohm proposal that he knew

or had reason to know was non-public and had been acquired directly
from DH Technology’s Chief Executive Officer, William Gibbs
{(“"Gibbs”).

5. In late 1996, Newmark introduced DH Technolcocgy tc Axiohm
for the purpose of thelr discussing a possible merger. On April 3,
1997, Newmark learned from Gibbs that the merger discussions had
advanced to the point that the companies had discussed a possible
price at which Axiohm would acguire DH Technology.

6. Between April 3 and 11, 1997, Newmark bought 30,000 DH
Technology shares for $513,125. On July 15, 1997, DH Technology
announced that Axiohm would acquire it via a tender offer. Newmark
sold his DH Technology shares on July 16 and 17, 1997, realizing
profits of $173,8%95.38.

THE DEFENDANT

7. Andrew Jay Newmark, age 41, resides in Greenwich,

Connecticut. Since 1989, Newmark has been Chairman of CoStar
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Corporation, a manufacturer of label printers and a pre-merger
client of both DH Technology and Axiohm.

RELATED ENTITIES AND PERSON

8. DH Technology, Inc., prior to its merger with Axiohm, was

a California corporation with its principal place of business in San
Diegoc. It designed, manufactured, and distributed credit card
receipt and bar code printers. Its stock was registered with the
Commission pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act and was
traded on Nasdaq.

9. Axichm, S.A., prior to its merger with DH Technology, was
a privately-held French company with its headquarters in Montrouge,
France. After the merger and a series of exchanges with two of its
subsidiaries and its holding company, the company registered as a
California corporation, Axiohm Transaction Solutions, Inc. It
designs, manufactures, and distributes credit card receipt printers,
including printers that appear at pay-at-the-pump gasoline stations.
Tt i1g traded on Nasdaq.

10. William Gibbs, age 55, was the Chairman, CEOQ and President

of DH Technelogy until January 1998.

SUBSTANTIAL STEP OR STEPS

11. On October 25, 1996, Newmark met with Axiohm’s Co-
President and presented his idea for an Axiohm-DH Technology merger.
On November 14, 1996, Newmark met with Gibbs and made a similar
presentation. Gibbs asked Newmark to cbtain financial informaticn
concerning Axiohm, set up a meeting between the companies and
arrange a tour of DH Technolegy’s facilities for Axichm’s officers.
Gibbs preserved the confidentiality of the tours, even from DH

Technology’s own employees, by creating cover stories for the
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visits. The tours tock place on December 12-and 13, 1996. On April
2, 1997, DH Technology and Axiohm officers met and, for the first
time, discussed a range of prices in the mid-$20s per share at which
Axiohm would be willing to acquire DH Technology.

NEWMARK'S KNOWLEDGE

12, On April 3, 1997, Gibbs told Newmark that the merger
discussions with Axicohm were continuing and that Axiohm had
discussed a range of prices in the mid-520s per share at which it
would be willing to acquire DH Technology. At the time, DH
Technology’s stock was trading at approximately $17 per share.
Newmark responded with a letter to Gibbs, stating in part: “1’'m glad
things are moving along with Axiohm. The combination will be a
powerhouse.”

13. Newmark knew, or had reason £o know, that the information
regarding Axichm’s proposal to acquire DH Technology was non-public
and was acquired directly from an officer of DH Technology.

NEWMARK' S PURCHASES OF DH TECHNOLOGY STOCK

14. While in possession of this material, non-public
information, Newmark engaged in the following transactions: On
April 3, 1997 Newmark purchased 13,000 shares of DH Technology at
817 per share, for a tetal purchase price of $221,000. The next
day, Newmark purchased an additional 10,000 shares at $17.3125 per
share, for a total purchase price of $173,125. On April 7, 1997,
Newmark purchased 2,000 additicnal shares at $17 per share, for a
total purchase price of $34,000. Finally, cn April 11, 1997,
Newmark purchased an additional 5,000 shares at $817 per share, for a

total purchase price cf $85,000.
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PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT OF AXIOHM'S TENDER OFFER

15. On July 15, 1997, DH Technology publicly announced that it
had signed a definitive merger agreement with Axiohm. The agreement
provided that a wholly-owned subsidiary of Axiohm would commence a
cash tender offer no later than July 21, 1997 to acquire between
6,500,009 and 7,000,000 shares of DH Technolcgy at $25 peir share.

i6. Following the public announcement of the tender offer, DH
Technolegy’s stock rose from a clesing bid of $15.875 on July 14 to
a closing bid of $23 on July 15, an increase of nearly 45%, on
volume of 887,000 shares. The volume was 60 times the 13,000
average daily volume for DH Technology stock measured during the
three week period prior to the public anncuncement.

NEWMARK’'S SALE OF DH TECHNOLOGY STOCK

17. On July 16, 1997, one day after the public announcement of
the Axiohm tender offer, Newmark sold 10,000 shares of DH Technology
at $22.875 per share, for a total sale price of $228,750. The next
day, Newmark sold the rest of his DH Technclogy shares 1in four lots:
13,000 shares at $23 per share, 3,000 shares at $23.25 per share,
2,000 shares at $23.0625 per share, and 2,000 shares at $23.25 per
share. Newmark realized $173,895.38 in profits from these sales of
DH Technolcgy stock.

FIRST CLAIM

Violations of Section 14 (e) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 [15 U.S.C. § 78n(e)]

and Rule l4e-3 [17 C.F.R. § 240.14e~-3] thereunder
18. Paragraphs 1 through 17 are realleged and 1lncorporated

herein by reference.
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19. By Aprii 2, 1897, Axichm had taken substantial steps
towards commencing its tender offer for the securities of DH
Technology, including among other things, holding several
confidential meetings and discussions with representatives of DH
Technology, exchanging financial information for the purpose of
facilitating such meetings and discussions, and ascertaining an
approximate price at which 1t was prepared to acquire DH Technolegy.

20. Newmark purchased DH Technology stock, as described above,
while he possessed material non-public information relating to a
tender coffer or request or invitaticn for a tender offer for DH
Technology stock. At the time that he purchased the DH Technology
stock, Newmark knew or had reason te know that the information he
possessed concerning the DH Technology stock was non-public and had
been acquired directly or indirectly from DH Technclogy, which was
the issuer of the securities to be sought by the offering person,
Axichm,

21. The material, non-public information relating to the tender
offer for DH Technology stock was not publicly disclosed by press
release or otherwise within a reascnable time prior to the Newmark’s
purchase.

22. By reason of the foregoing acts, practices, and course-of-
business, Newmark violated Section 14 (e} of the Exchange Act [1%
U.S.C. § 78n(e)] and Rule 1l4e-3 [17 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3] promulgated
thereunder.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that this

Court:
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I.

Issue findings cof fact and conclusions of law that the

Defendant committed the violatlons charged and alleged herein.
IT.

Permanently enjoln Newmark from violating Secticn 14(e) of the

Exchange Act and Rule lde-3 thereunder.
IIT.

Order Newmark to disgorge all Improper gains from his unlawful
conduct, gained directly or indirectly from the transactions
complained of herein, together with prejudgment interest thereon.

Iv.

Order Newmark to pay a civil money penalty pursuant to Section

214 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u-1].
V.

Retain jurisdiction of this action in accordance with the
principles of equity and the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 1n
order to implement and carry out the terms of all orders and decrees
that may be entered or to entertain any suiltable application or
motion for additional rellef within the Jjurisdiction of this Court,

VI.

Grant such other and further relief as this Court may determine
to be just and necessary.

DATED: FEBRUARY 11, 2000 e "1' /’/'/’f
Todd Brilliant

Attorney for Plaintiff
Securities and Exchange Commission
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